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IND I A d 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the members of SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SNS Clothing Private Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year then ended, the cash flow statement for the year and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as 
amended, ("AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2025, the p,:efit / loss for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the Standalone financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements: 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements 

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 ("the Order'') issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 



2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 202S from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in "Annexure C". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 

and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financials controls w ith reference to 

financial statements. 

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2025; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company has made provIsIon, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to transfer to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 



iv. A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

B) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), w ith 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, ·security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

v. C) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that nothing has come to their notice that has caused 
them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of clause (h) contain any 
material mis-statement. 

vi. No Dividends were declared or paid during the year by the company. 

DISCLOSURE IN THE AUDIT REPORT UNDER RULE 11 (q): 

Based on our examination, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account during the year ended Morch 31, 2025, which hos a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility, however, the audit trail feature was not enabled throughout the year for 
certain relevant transactions only at the application level. Further, the audit trail feature was 
not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. The audit trail feature as 
mentioned above hos been operated throughout the year for certain relevant transactions only, 
recorded in the accounting software. Further, during the course of our examination, we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of the 
accounting software for the period for which the audit trail was operating. 

Based on our examination, the Company has used a payroll software which is operated by a 
third-party software service provider for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 
March 31, 2025. In the absence of independent auditor's report of the service organization, we 
are unable to comment whether the software has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility nor are we able to comment on whether the audit trail feature was enabled in the said 
software and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. We are further unable to comments to whether there were any instances of the audit 
trail feature been tampered with. 



Based on our examination, the Company has used inventory software for maintaining its books 
of account which do not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Accordingly, 
we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature has been tampered, and whether 
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention prescribed under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

For Satish & Ravi Associates, 
FRN 072145, 

c(a'rtered Acco~untant~, _ 

\.atnV'\ °'· 
~-

Per Satish Makhija 
Partner 
MNo.204258 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19/05/2025 
UDIN: 25204258BMKZOY8854 



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

For Satish & Ravi Associates, 
FRN 07214S, 

\;,7~-~~ 
Per Satish ;ak~a 
Partner 

M No. 204258 
UDIN: 25204258BMKZOY8854 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19/05/2025 



Annexure B referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 
of our report of even date 

1. In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets; 
a) 

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of right of use 
assets/intangible assets. 

b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there 
is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

c) Since the Company does not own any immovable properties, this clause is not applicable. 

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, this clause is not applicable. 

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder, this clause is not applicable. 

2. In Respect of Inventories; 
a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 

during the year. 
b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are 

reasonable and adequate in relat ion to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. 

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on physical verification. 

d) No point of time during the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets, this clause is not applicable. 

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any 
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability Partnerships or any other 
parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,2013 during the 
year. 

4. Clause relating to compliance of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
loans, investments, guarantees, and security, is presently not applicable to the company hence not 
commented upon. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits 
accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6. According to the information and explanations given to us that, the maintenance of cost records as 
per provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 



7. With respect to Statutory Dues; 
a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, GST, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it. We are informed by the company that the provisions of Investor 
education and Protection Fund, Excise, Customs and Wealth Tax are not applicable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, GST, cess and other 
material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions that was not 
recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
taken a loan from the Holding Company. The terms of the loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company. The Company has not defaulted in repayment whenever due. The 
Company has not taken any other loans from financial institutions or from the government and has 
not issued any debentures. 

10. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year, hence the clause is not applicable. 

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standard. 

14. a) The provisions of the internal audit system are not applicable to the company. Hence clause (b) is 
also not applicable 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon 

16. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to t he Company and hence not commented upon. 

17. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has 
incurred cash losses in the financial year and but has not incurred cash loss in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 



18. There was no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence this clause is not 
applicable. 

19. In our opinion, that no material uncertainty exists based upon the audit procedures performed, 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities and the information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and explanations given by the 
management, the Company on the date of the audit report is capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date 

20. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of 
section 135 (S) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company and hence clause (b) 
too is not applicable, 

21. In our opinion Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the us in the 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the Standalone 
financial statements, 

For Satish & Ravi Associates, 
FRN07214S, 

~~~~;;I;~·-~. 
Per Satish Ma;a I 
Partner 
M No. 204258 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19/05/2025 
UDIN: 25204258BMKZOY8854 



Annexure C to Auditors' Report of even date 

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Re: SNS Clothing Private Limited 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SNS Clothing Private Limited 
("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") andthe Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairlyreflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Satish & Ravi Associates, 
FRN 07214S, 

\;;:~-~ 
Per Satish Ma~a - , 

Partner 
M No. 204258 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19/05/2025 
UDIN: 25204258BMKZOY8854 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Ilalancc Sheet as al March 31, 2025 
All a111011nrs i11 Indian Rupees in lakhs, except staled othenvise 

As at As at 
Notes 

March 31, 2025 March 31 , 2024 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 21 1.66 21 Ll2 

Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 479.67 

Righi of use asset 3(c) 234.28 417.47 

Financial assets 

Investments 4 0.02 0.02 

Other financials assets 5(a) 210.83 81.22 

Deferred tax asseis (net) 6(a) 165.99 93.14 

Non current tax assets (net) 6(b) 23.94 24.05 

Other non current assets 7(a) 3004 12.58 

Total non-current assets 1,356.43 839.60 

Current assets 

Invent ones 8 120. 14 270.26 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 9 878.93 395.43 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 3.00 8. 11 

Other bank balances (other than cash and cash equivalents) 10 8.57 

Other financials assets S(b) 0.13 505.47 

Other current assets 7(b) 75.91 45,73 

Total current assets 1,086.68 1,225.00 

Total assets 2,443.l I 2,064.60 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Bnlance Sheet 11s at March JI, 2025 

All amo11n1s in lndion R11pees in lakhs. except stated othenvise 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Equity share capital 

Other equity 

Total equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Lease liability 

Provision for employee benefits 

Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabiht1es 

Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

Lease liability 

Other current financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 

Provision for employee benefits 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our even report 

ForSATISII & RAVI ASSOCIATES 

ICAI Firm Registration Number.: 007214S \;.:~~~- • -~-

-:-~ per Satish Makhija 

Partner 

Membership No .. 204258 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Notes 

II 

12 

13 

14(n) 

15(a) 

16 

14(b) 

17 

18 

I 5(b) 

2.2 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

200 

1,166.50 

I, 168.50 

611 .84 

171.49 

14.08 

797.41 

11.91 

60.66 

102.06 

287.77 

11. 13 

3.67 

477.20 

1,274.61 

2,443.11 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

2.00 

1,381.79 

1,383.79 

273.68 

9.68 

283.36 

120.04 

177 64 

84.01 

12.69 

3.07 

397.45 

680 .. 81 

2,064.60 

For ,rnd on behalf of the Bon rd of Directors of 

SNS Clothing Private Limited 

~ 
P Viswanatb 

Director 

DIN: 07410446 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Director 

DIN: 07425034 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Statement o f Profit a ud Loss for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 

All amoums in Indian Rupees in /akhs, except stated 01he11vise 

Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income 

II Expenses 
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade ond work- in-progress 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance COSIS 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 

(Gain)/loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 

Other expenses 

Total upenses 

Ill ProfiU(Loss) before t:1x for the period (1-11) 

IV Tax expenses 

Current tax 

Adjustment of tax relating 10 earlier years 

Deferred tax (crcdit)/charge 

V Prolit/(Loss) after tax for the period (Ill-IV) 

VI Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (net of tax) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 

Total other com11rehensive income/(loss) for the year 

VII Total comprehensive income for the period at1ributable to equity holders 

VIII Earnings per equity share (nominal value of :f 10 (March 31 , 2024 - t 10)) 

Basic and diluted 

Weighted average number of shares - Basic and diluted 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Tbe accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SA TISH & RA VI ASSOCrA TES 

ICAI Firm Registration Number.: 007214S 

\;.~'~""'' ·- ~-
_.--;:""', 

per Satish Makhija 

Partner 

Membership No.: 204258 

Place: Bengaluru 

Dare: May 19, 2025 

Notes 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

2.2 

March 3 1, 202S 

1,327.95 

8.08 

1,336.03 

400.26 

90.10 

170.66 

484.96 

42.85 

240.50 

2.93 

195.81 

1,628.07 

(292.04) 

(72.85) 

(72.85) 

(2 19.19) 

3.9 1 

3.91 

(2 15.28) 

( 1,095.97) 

20,000 

M:1rch 31, 2024 

763.56 

6.49 

770.05 

28 1.73 

100.44 

( 146.62) 

264.29 

62.89 

23 1.43 

148.12 

942.28 

(172.23) 

(93.14) 

(93.14) 

(79.09) 

1.24 

1.24 

(77.85) 

(395.45) 

20,000 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

SNS Clothing Priva te Limited 

P Viswanath 

Director 

DIN: 074 10446 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

~ 
S athyamurthy A 

Director 

DIN: 07425034 

Place: Bengaluru 

e : May 19, 2025 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 
All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except suited othe,wise 

a. Equity share capital 

Equity shares on IO each issued, subscribed and fully paid 

As al April 0 1, 2023 

Add: Issued during the year 

As at March 3 1, 2024 

Add: Issued during the year 

As a t March 3 1, 2025 

b. Other equity 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 

As at April 1, 2024 

Profit/(loss) for the year 

Remeasurement o f post employment benefi1s obligations, nc1 of tax 
As at M arch 31, 2025 

For the year ended March 3 1, 2024 

As a l April I , 2023 

Profit/(loss) for the year 

Remeasurement ofpos1 employmem benefits obliga1ions, net of tax 

As at March 3 I , 2024 

Refer no1e 2.2 for summary of significant accounting policies. 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statements 

As per our repor1 of even date 

For SA TISH & RAVI ASSOCIAT ES 

ICAI Fim1 Registration Number.: 007214S 

\; :;~"'"" -• ~ 
per Salish l\~' 

Panner 

Membership No.: 204258 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

No of Shares 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

Reserves and S urplus 

Securities 
C apital Retained 

premium 
reserve earnings 

reserve 

1.774.00 2.22 (394.43) 

- - (219. 19) 

- - 3.91 
1,774.00 2.22 (609.71) 

Reserves and S urplus 

Securities C apital Retained 
premium reserve earnings 
reserve 

1,774.00 222 (316.58) 

- - (79.09) 

- . 1.24 

1,774.00 2.22 (394.43) 

For And on behalr o f the Board or Directors of 

SNS C lothing Private Limited 

P Viswanalh 

Director 

DIN: 07410446 

Place: 13engaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Director 

DIN: 07425034 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Amount 

2.00 

2.00 

2.00 

Total 

1,381.79 

(219.19) 

3.91 
1,166.50 

Total 

1,459.64 

(79.09) 

1.24 

1.381.79 



SNS C lothing Private Lim itcd 
Cash now statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 
All amounts in /nd1011 R1112!!.cs in lakh,. e.tcee,1 slated otherwi.,e 

Notes March 31 2025 Mnrch 3 1 2024 
A. Cash now from operating activities 

Profit before tax (292.04) (172.23) 

Adjustments 10 reconcile profit before tax 10 net cash nows: 

Depreciation expenses 240,50 231.43 

Interest income (8.08) {6.49) 

Finance costs 42.85 62.89 

Operating prorit/(loss) before working capital changes (16.77) 115.60 

Working c.api1al adjustments 

(Jncrease)/decrcnse in trade receivables (483.50) (395.17) 

(lncrease)/decrcase in inventories 150 12 (200.41) 

{lncrease),'decrcase in other financial assets 382.94 665.95 
(lncrease)ldecrcase in other assets (29 38) (33 97) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (47.48) 99.77 
lncrease/(decrease) in provisions for employee benefits 8.91 6.21 
lncrcase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 4.71 81.46 
lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities (1.56) 10.97 

Cash nows from/(uscd in) operating activities (32.01) 350.41 
Direct taxes !!!!id (net of refund) 0.11 {2.32) 

Net cash nows from/(uscd in) oeeratini; activities (A) (31.90) 348.09 

B. Cash now from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including intangible (356.73) ( 128.44) 
assets and capital work-in-progress) 
Investments on bank depos11S (8.57) 
Interest income received 0.87 0.36 
Net cash nows from/(uscd in) invest in& activities (B) (364.43) (128.08) 

C. Cnsh flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from Indian rupee loan from holding company 611.84 

Payment of lease Liability (218.58) (2 15.18) 

Finance costs paid (2.04) (0.89) 

Net cash nows from/(uscd in) financing activilic.s (C) 391.22 (2)6.07) 

Net increasc/(dccrcase) in cash and cnsh cquivalcnu (A+B+C) (5. 11) 3.94 
Cash and cash ~uivalents at the be~innin& of the ~car 8. 11 4.17 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3.00 8.1 1 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 
On current accounts 2.55 7.68 

Cash on hand 0.43 
T orn! 10 8.11 

Summary of significant accounting policies 22 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 
Cash now statement for the year ended March 3 1, 202S 
All amounts m Indian Rupees III lakh.,, except stated otherw,.,e 

Notes: 
I. Reconciliation of linbilities nrising from financing activities 

Balance as at April 01, 2023 

Cash nows 
Non-<:ash changes 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 
Cash nows 
Non-cash changes 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 

llorrowings 

6 11.84 

61 1.84 

Lease liabilities 
252.47 

(2 15, 18) 
414,03 

451.32 
(218.58) 

40.8! 
273.55 

Total 

252.47 
(215, 18) 
4 14.0J 
451.32 

393.26 
40.81 

885.39 

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) • 
Statement of Cash Flow. 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial s1aternents 
As per our repon of even date 

forSATISII & RAVI ASSOCIATES 
I Firm Registration Number.: 0072 I 4S 

anercd Accountants 

,.~::~f 
Panner 
Membership No.: 204258 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 19, 2025 

For and on behalf or the Board of Direc1ors of 
SNS Clothing Private Lim itcd 

r Viswanath 
Director 
DIN: 07410446 

Pince: Bengaluru 
Date: May 19, 2025 

~ 
Sathyamu rthy A 

Director 
DIN: 07425034 

Place: Bengaluru 
Dote: May 19. 2025 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the fin ancia l s tatements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

All amounls in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except slated otherwise 

Corporate information 

SNS Clothing Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on August 9, 2004. The Company took over all the 
assets and liabilities of Central Wearhouse and Wearwel as a going concern on October I , 2004. The Company becan1e a 
subsidiary ofGokaldas Exports Limited (formerly known as Gokaldas India Private Limited) on December I, 2004. 

2 Significant accounting policies 

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its siandalone financial statements are 
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently 10 all the periods presented in these standalone 
financial statements. 

2.1 S tatement of Compliance with Ind AS 

In accordance with the noli Ii cation issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as ' Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment Rules 2016, as amended with effect from April I, 
2016. The standalone financial statements of the Company, have been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind 
AS. 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets 
and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which are measured at fair value. 

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ('() which is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. All amounts have been rounded-off 10 the nearest lakhs, unless 
otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Summa ry of significant accounting policies 

a. C urrent versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nom1al operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period 

The Company classifies all other I iabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Advance tax paid is classi lied as non-current assets. 



SNS C lothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial st.i tements for the ye.ir ended March 3 1, 2025 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, excepl s1a1ed 01he11vise 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. 

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

b. Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using 
valuation techniques. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
> In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes i1110 account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of releva111 observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliues 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significa111 to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
detcm1ines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

c. Foreign currencies 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, transactions in the currencies other than the Company's functional 
currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. At the end of each reporting period, 
monetary items denominated in the foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting 
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items are measured in tenns of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial s tatements for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 

Alf amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except stated othenvise 

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or sealement of other monetary items arc included in the statement of 
profit and loss for the period 

d. Revenue recognilion 

i. Revenue from Contracts with C ustomers: 

Effective April I, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from ContraclS with Customers" using the 
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were 1101 completed as of April I, 20 I 8. In accordance 
with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. 

The following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition. 

Performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition: 

The Company derives its revenue primarily from sale of gam1ents, shoes and related products, with revenue recognised 
at a point in time when control of the goods has transferred 10 the customer. This is generally when the goods are 
delivered 10 the customer/ agent nominated by the customer. 

There is limited judgement needed in identifying the point when control passes: 
- once physical delivery of the products has occurred to the location as per agreement, 
- the Company no longer has physical possession, 
- usually will have a present right to payment (as a single payment on delivery) and 
- retains none of the significant risks and rewards of the goods in question 

The Company also derives some revenue from job work contracts. In these cases, revenue 1s recognised as and when 
services are rendered i.e. the products on which job work is perfonned is delivered to the customer at agreed location. 

Determming the transaction price: 

The Company's revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be eamcd from each 
contract is detennined by reference to those fixed prices. There is no significant variable consideration involved. 

Allocating amounts to pe,formance obligauons 

For most contracts, there is a fixed unit price for each unit sold, therefore, there is no judgement involved in allocating 
the contract price to each unit. 

Costs of fulfilling co11trae1s: 

The costs of fulfilling contracts do not result in the recognition of a separate asset because such costs are included in the 
carrying amount of inventory for contracts involving the sale of goods. 

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and loss. 

Advances received from customers are in the nature of contract liability. 

ii. Revenue from cxporl incentives: 

Export incentives are recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the applicable schemes formulated, by the 
Government of India and where there is reasonable assurance that the enterprise will comply with the conditions 
attached to them. 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202S 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in /akhs. except stated othenvise 

iii. Interest income: 

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income ('OCI'), 
interest income is recorded using the efTective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash nows by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

iv. Dividends: 

Dividend income on invesunents is accounted when the right to receive the dividend is established, which is generally 
when shareholders approve the dividend. 

v. Others: 

Insurance / other claims arc recognized on acceptance basis. 

c. Non-current assets held for sale 

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts wilJ be recovered principally 
through a sale rather than through continuing use. 

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to 1ern1S that are usual and customary for sales of such assets , its 
sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly 
probable when: 

a) The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset, 

b) An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated, 

c) The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value, 

d) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and 

e) Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or 
that the plan will be withdrawn. 

f. Government grants 
The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions auached to 
them shall be complied with, and the grants wi ll be received. Government grants related 10 assets are treated as income in 
the statement of profit and loss upon fulfilment of the conditions auached to the grant received. These grants are 
presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. 
Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended co compensate. 

Export incentives are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the applicable schemes forn1ulated, by the 
Government of India and where there is reasonable assurance that the enterprise will comply with the conditions 
attached to them. 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial Sllttements for the year ended Murch 3 1, 2025 

All amounls in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except staled 01herwise 

g. Taxes 

Current income tax 
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the 
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items thai are never taxable or 
deductib le. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred income tax 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and 
liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable 
profit and is accounted for using the ba.lance sheet liabi lity model. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
the taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred assets are only recognised to the extent that is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Deferred income tax assets arc recognized for all deductible temporary di fferenees, carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pan of the deferred income tax asset to 
be utilized. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforcei1ble right exists 10 set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial s tatements for the year ended March JJ, 2025 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except stated othenvise 

h. Property, 11lant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets and Depreciation / amortization 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at March 31. 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on April I , 2016. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. Capital work in progress and all other property, plant 
and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset's carrying a.mount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets arc de-recognised when replaced. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component / part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has 
a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the 
remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; 1hc remaining asset is depreciated over the li fe 
of the principal asset. 

Depreciation is provided using the wrillen down value method as per tl1e useful lives of the assets estimated by the 
management wi1h residual value at 5%, which is equal to the corresponding rates prescribed under schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Categorv of asset 

Buildings 

Plant and Machinery 

Electrical Equipment 

Furniture and fixtures 

Office equipment 

Vehicles 

Computers 

Estimated useful life (in years) 

30 years 

15 years 

10 years 

10 years 

5 years 

8 years 

3 years 

Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized over their expected useful life or the non-cancellable tern, 
of the lease, whichever is less. 

The residual values, useful lives and me1hods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset (calcula1ed as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included 111 

the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 



SNS Clothing Privalc Limited 

Notes to the fina ncial statements for the yea r ended March 31, 2025 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in fakhs, except stated othenvise 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impainncnt whenever there 
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period with the effect of any 
change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation 
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on 
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms pan of 
carrying value of another asset. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 

A summary of the policies applied to the Company' s intangible assets is, as follows: 

lnlangiblc assets Useful lives Amortisalion method used Internally generated or 
acquired 

Computer software Definite (2.5 years) WDV Acquired 

i. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costS consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 111 connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as pan of the cost of the asset until such 
time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. 

j. Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception oft he lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement. 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. 

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 20 16, the Company has detem1ined whether the arrangement comain 
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition. 

Company as a lessee 

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a 
finance lease. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in /akhs, except stated othenvise 

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased asset or, at 
the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as 10 achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss 
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case tl1ey arc capitalized in accordance with the 
Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To a~sess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whetl1er: (i) the contract involves the use of an 
identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
oftl1e lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct tlie use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (" ROU") and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a tenn of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-tenn and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been 
classified as financing cash flows. 

Transition to Ind AS 116 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which 
replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on­
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. 

The Company adopted Ind AS I 16 "Leases" and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April l , 2019 
using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of 
initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments 
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been 
applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company's rncremental borrowing rate at the 
date of initial application. The Company has not restated comparative infommtion, instead, the cumulative effect of 
initially applying this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 
April I, 20 19. 

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 20 19 under Ind AS 17 and the value of the lease 
liability as of April I, 2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain 
to be exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting tlie lease liabilities to the 
present value under Ind AS 116. 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied 10 lease liabilities as at Apri l I, 2019 is 11% 
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k. Inventories 

Inventories are valued as follows: 

Raw materials, packing materials, s1ores, spares and consumables are valued a1 lower of cos1 or nel realisable value. Cosl 
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
Cost is dete.rmined on a weighted average basis. However, ma1erials and other items held for use in the production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to 
be sold at or above cosL 

Work iJ1 progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the nonnal operating capacity, but excluding 
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. These arc valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value afier considering provision for obsolescence and other anticipated loss, wherever considered necessary. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of comple1ion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

I. Provisions: 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 10 settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to 
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only 
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 
and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax race that renects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

ii. Contingent liabilities : 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confinned by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a presen1 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outnow of resources will be required to senle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the standalone financial statements. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet. 

m. Retirement and other employee benefils 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, employee state insurance and pension fund are defined contribution 
scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company 
recognises contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and employee state insurance as expenditure, when an 
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance 
sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to lhe scheme is recognised as a liability 
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead 
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 
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All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, allowances and bonus etc. , are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance Corporation 
oflndia('LIC') and liability (net of fair value of investment in UC) is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the end of each balance sheet date. Every employee who has completed 4 years 240 
days or more of the service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (last drawn salary) of each completed year of 
service. The fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise 

the obligation on a net basis. 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee 
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-tern, compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. 

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the standalone balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the standalone balance sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: 

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements; and 

b. Net interest expense or income 

n. Share- based payments 
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the fonn of share-based payments, whereby employees render 
services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). 
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Equilv-sctlled transactions: 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is detem1incd by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an 
appropriate valuation model. 

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over 
the period in which the service / performance conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative 
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which 
the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately 
vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense 
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. 

Service and non-market perfomrnnce conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of 
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate of the number 
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market perfonnance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair 
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be 
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate 
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and / or service 
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as 
vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and I 
or service conditions are satisfied. 

When the tenns of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms 
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any 
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any 
remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. 

The dilutive efTect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings 
per share (except for anti-dilution). 

o. Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodymg 
the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially 
measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on 
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries, the 
excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value is accounted as an equity investment. 

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less 
impairment. 
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Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating 
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future 
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. 

(a) Financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

F inancial assets measured a t fair value 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial 
assets and the contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial asscc not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair 
value through the statement of profit and loss. 

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet dace, the carrying amounts approximate fair value 
due to the shon maturity of these instruments. 

Impairment of financial assets excluding inYCStments in subsidiary 

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cosc and fair value 
through other comprehensive income. 

The company recognises impainnent loss on trade re-eeivables using expected credit loss model, which 111volves use of 
provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS I 09 -
Impairment loss on investments. 

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to 
twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is 
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash nows from the linancial asset 
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS I 09. 

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control 
the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company 
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collatcralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
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On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of 
de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classifica tion as debt or equity 
Financial liabil ities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions ofa financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity Inst ruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 
amonised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the Lime value of money is signifi.cant. Interest bearing 
bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amonised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss. 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate 
fair value due to the shon maturity of these instruments. 

i. Financia l gua ran tee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 10 make a payment when due in accordance with the 
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for 
transaction costs that are directly atLributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at 
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

ii. De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially differem terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

Off-setting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reponed in the standalone balance sheet if there 
is a currently enforceable legal right 10 offset the recognised amounts and there is an imention to settle on a net basis. to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

p. Deriva tive fin ancial instruments 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward to mitigate the risk of changes in 
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The countcrpany for these contracts is generally a bank. 



SNS Clothing Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 

All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs. except staled olhenvise 

a. Financial assets or financial liabilities, a t fair value through profit or loss 

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Any derivative that is 
either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS I 09, is categorized as a financial asset 
or financial liability, a t fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at 
fair value and auributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting 
gains or losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. 

b. Cash now hedge accounting 

The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward contracts as cash now hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign 
exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any inefTcctive portion of changes in the fair 
value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the ne1 profit in the sta1cment of profit and loss. If the hedging 
instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is disconlinued prospectively. lflhe 
hedging instrument expires or is sold, tem,inated or exercised, 1he cumulaiive gain or loss on the hedging instrument 
recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was efTective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until 
the forccasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is 
transferred to the net profit in the statement of profit and loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If 
the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is 
reclassified to nel profit in the s1atemen1 of profit and loss. 

q. Impairment of non-financial assets 

As at the end of each accounting year, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property, 
intangible assets and investments in subsidiary companies to detenninc whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, tl1e said assets are tested for impairment so as to determine 
the impainnent loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indcfini1e life are tes1ed for impairment each year. 

Impairment loss is recognised when 1he carrying amount ofan asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount 
is determined: 

(i) in tl1e case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and 

(ii) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the 
higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value muse. 

(The amount of value in use is detennined as the presenl value ofestimaied future cash flows from the continuing use of 
an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based 
on the weighted average cost of capital of the company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows 
of the asset). 

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascenained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash 
innows that are largely independent of the cash innows from other assets or groups of assets. 

If recoverable amount of an asse1 (or cash genera1ing uni1) is estimated 10 be less tl,an its carrying amount, such deficit is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or 
cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in 
prior years. A reversal of an impainnent loss is recognised immediately in the S tatement of Profit and Loss. 

r. Corporate social responsibility ('CSR') expenditure 

The Company charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of profit and loss. 

s. Cash and Cash equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-Lenn deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash 
management. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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3(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Buildings 
Leasehold Plant and Electrical Office Furniture 

Computers Vehicle Total 
Improvements machinery Equipments equipments and fixtures 

Gross carrying value 1 

As at April I, 2023 0.48 39.99 105.52 1.53 1.44 14.09 0.09 163.14 

Additions 15.03 62.29 6.69 3.15 13.67 9.98 11.58 122.39 

As at March 31 , 2024 0.48 55.02 167.81 8.22 4.59 27.76 10.07 I 1.58 285.53 

Additions 3.64 46.89 0.26 0.65 6.41 57.85 

As at March 3 I , 2025 0.48 58.66 214.70 8.22 4.85 28.41 10.o? 17.99 343.37 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April I, 2023 0.19 17.72 2.90 1.41 0.42 8.87 0.00 31 .51 

Charge for the year 0.02 9.7! 20.94 1.65 1.!5 3. 19 4.7 1 1.52 42.89 

As at March 3 1, 2024 0.21 27.43 23.84 3.06 1.57 12.06 4.71 1.52 74.40 

Charge for the year O.o? 12.01 30.59 !.36 1.24 3.72 3.33 4.98 57.31 
As a t March 3 1, 2025 0.28 39.44 54.43 4.42 2.81 15.78 8.04 6.50 131.71 

Net Book value 

As at March 3 I, 2025 0.20 19.22 160.27 3.80 2.04 12.63 2.03 11.48 211.66 

As at March 3 1, 2024 0.27 27.59 143.97 5.16 3.02 15.70 5.36 10.06 211.12 

1 The Company has avai led the exemption available under Ind AS IO I. wherein the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress as at April I, 2016 
under the previous GAAP has been carried forward as the deemed coslS under Ind AS. 
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J(b) Capital work-in-progress 

(a) Direct cost 

Opening balance 

Additions during the year: 

Leasehold Improvements 

Plant and machinery 

Electrical Equipments 

Office equipments 

(b) Pre-operative expenses pending for allocation/capitalization 

Legal and professional fees 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Capital work-in-progress 
Less: Capitalised during the year 

Total capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress ageing sched ule 

Projects in progress 

March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2024 
Projects temporarily suspended 

March 31, 2025 
March 3 I, 2024 

Less than I 
year 

479.67 

(A) 

(B) 

(A+B) 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

I 1-2 years I 2-3 years I 

March JI, 2025 March JI, 2024 

4.19 
341.80 

89.35 

1.02 

436.36 

19.48 

23.83 

43.31 

479.67 

479.67 

More than J 
years 

Total 

479.67 



SNS Clothing PrivMe Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 

All 0111011111s in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except stared otheneise 

J(c) Right-of-use assets 

Cos t 

As at April 1, 2023 

Additions 

As at March 31, 2024 

Additions 
As at March 31, 2025 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April t , 2023 
Additions 

As al March JI, 2024 

Additions 
As at March 31, 2025 

Net carrying value 

As a t March 31, 2025 

As at Marc.h 31, 2024 

4 Non C urrent lnvcstments 

Investments in government secun11cs (unquoted) 

Indira Vikas patra 

Total Non current investments 

S Other financial assets 

Carried at amortised cost 

Unsecured, considered good 

(a) Non-current 

Security and other deposits 

(b) Curren t 
Loan to employees 

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Receivable from holding company 

Total other financial assets 

6(a) Dcferrtd tax Assets 

Deferred taX assets 

Total deferred tax assets 

Buildin s Total 

336. 14 336.14 

355.6 1 355.61 
691. 75 69 1.75 

691.75 69 1.75 

85 74 85.74 

188.54 188.54 

274.28 274.28 

183.19 183.19 
4S7.47 457.47 

234.28 234.28 
417.47 4 17.47 

March 3 I, 2025 Mnrch J 1, 2024 

0 .02 0,02 

0.02 0.02 

March 3 1, 2025 March 31, 2024 

210.83 81 22 

(A) 2I0.8J 81.22 

0.05 0.71 

008 
504.76 

(B) 0. 13 S05.47 

(A+B) 210.96 586.69 

Mardi JI , 2025 March 31, 2024 

165.99 93.14 

16S.99 93.14 
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6(b) Non current tax assets (net) 

Advance payment of income tax 

Total non current tax assets 

7 Other assets 

Unsecured, considered good 

(a) Non-current 

Prepaid expenses 

Capital advances 

(b) Current 
Prepaid expenses 

Balances with statutory/ government authorities 

Advance to suppliers 

Total other assets 

8 Inventories 

Raw materials (including packing materials) and components 

Work - 1 n-progress 

Finished goods 

Consumables, stores and spares pans 

Total inventories 

9 T rade receivables 

Unsecured, considered good 

Total trade receivables 

Ageing of trade receivables: 

As al March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2025 

23.94 

23.94 

March 31, 2025 

5.73 

24.31 
(A) 30.04 

3.99 

56.37 

15.55 
(B) 75.91 

(A+B) 105.95 

March 31, 2025 

69.74 

0.51 
45,30 

4.59 

120.14 

Much 31, 2025 

878.93 

878.93 

Outstanding for following JlCriods from due date of payment 
Not due Ltss than 6116 months -1 1 2 I 2 3 I More than 3 

months 1 year • years • years years 

Unsecured, considered good 229.22 649.71 

As al March 31, 2024 
Outstanding for following 11eriods from due dnte of (lllyment 

Not due Less than 6,16 months-, 1 2 I 2 3 I More than 3 
months I year • years • years years 

Unsecured, considered good 100.08 295.35 

March 31, 2024 

24.05 

24.05 

March 31, 2024 

6.53 

6 .05 
12.58 

7.70 

38.03 

45.73 

58.31 

March 31, 2024 

52.21 

58 43 
158,04 

1.58 

270.26 

March 31, 2024 

395,43 

395.43 

Total 

878.93 

Total 

395.43 
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Notes: 
a. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. 
b. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other o Oicers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other 
person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a 
director or a member. 
c. The Company follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss". The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 

10 Cash and cash equivalent 

Current 

Balances with banks 

In current accounts• 

Cash on hand 

Total cash and cash equiva lents (Current) 

Other bank balance (other than cash a nd cash equivalents) 

Currtnt 

In fixed deposits accounts 

Held as margin money against bank guarantees 

Wich original matumy of more than 3 months but less chan/cqual to 12 months 

Total other bank balance (other than cash and cash equivalents) 

• Balance with bank in current accounts docs not earn Interest. 

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank) 

March JI, 2025 March J I, 2024 

2.55 
0.45 

3.00 

7.68 
0 .43 

8.11 

March 3 1, 2025 Mnrch J I , 2024 

8.57 

8.57 
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11 Slrnre Capital 

Authorised share capital 

As at April I, 2023 

As at March 31. 2024 

As at March 31, 2025 

Issued equity capital 

Equity shares of , JO each issueo, subscribed and fully paid 

As at April I, 2023 

As at March 31, 2024 

As at March 31, 2025 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

Number or shares 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

Amount 

2.00 

2.00 

2.00 

2.00 

2.00 
2.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10 per share. Each holder of equity 1s enti1led 10 one vote 
per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. TI1e d ividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In event of liquida1ion of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be en1i1led 10 receive remaining asse1s of 1he Company, 
aficr distribution of all preferen1ial amounts. The distribution will be in proponion 10 the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

Details of shareholders holding more th,111 5% shares in the Comrrnny 

Gokaldas Expons Limited. holding company 

Number of shares 

% holding in the class 

March 31, 2025 M:1rch 31, 2024 

20,000 

100% 

20,000 

100% 

As per records of the Company, including 11s register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interes1, the above shareholding represent bo1h legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

Promoter's shareholding 

Promoter name 

No. of shares at the beginning of the year 

Change during the year 

No. of shares at 1he end of the year 

% of total shares 

% changes during the year 

March 31, 2025 

Gokaldas Expons 
Limited 

20,000 

20,000 

100% 

March 31, 2024 

Gokaldas Expons 
Limited 

20,000 

20,000 

100% 
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12 Other equity 

(a) Securities prtmium reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Balance at the end or the year 

(b) Capital Rescn,e 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Balance at the end or the year 

(c) Retained earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 

Add: Remeasurement of post employment benefits obligauons 

Balance at the end or the year 

Total othtr equity 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(A+D+C) 

The description or the nature and purpose o f each reserve within equity is as follows: 

March J I, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1,774.00 1,774.00 
1,774.00 1,774.00 

2.22 2.22 

2.22 2.22 

(39443) (3 16.58) 

(219.19) (79 09) 

3.91 1.24 

(609.71) (394.43) 

1,166.50 1,381.79 

(a) Securities premium reserve: 1l1is reserve represents amount of premium recognised on issue of shares to shareholders at a price 
more than its face value. 

(b) Capilal reserve: This reserve represents reserve recognised on amalgamation being the difference between consideration amount 
and net assets of the transferor company. 
(c) Retained earnings: This reserve refer to net earnings not paid out as d ividends, but retained by 1he Company to be reinvested in 
its core bus mess. This amount is available for distribution of dividends to its equity shareholders. 

IJ Borrowings 
March 31, 2025 Mnrch 31, 2024 

(a) Long term borrowings 

(ai) Other loan (unsecured) 

Indian rupee loan from holding company' 61 1.84 

Total bor rowings 611.84 

Note: Nature of security, rate or interest and terms o r repayment: 
1 Indian rupee loan from holding company oft 6 11.84 lakhs (March 31, 2024: t Nil lakhs), carries interest@ 8.50% 1s repayable in 
60 equal monthly instalments with a moratorium period ofS years from the da1e of disbursement of loan. 

14 Lease liabil ities 

(a) Non-current 

Lease Liabil itics 

(b) Current 

Lease Liabilities 

Total lease liabililics 

Refer Note 32(1) for maturity profile and other details. 

(A) 

(B) 

(A+B) 

MarchJl,2025 MarchJl,2024 

171.49 273.68 

171.49 273.68 

102.06 177.64 

102.06 177.64 

273.S5 451.32 
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15 Provision for e mployee benefits 

(a) Non current 
Gratuity (refer note 33) 

(b) Current 
Gratuity (refer note 33) 

Leave bcne fits 

Total provision for employee benefits 

16 Trade payables 

Current 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

T otal trade payables 

Ageing of t rade payables 

As at March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2025 

14.08 

(A) 14.08 

1.21 

2.46 

(B) 3.67 

(A+B) 17.75 

March 31, 2025 

11.91 

60.66 

72.57 

Outstanding for following per iods 

(1) Micro and small enterprises 

(ii) Others 

As Al March 31, 2024 

{i) Micro and small enterprises 

(ii) Others 

Not due 

11.91 

20.61 

Not due 

59.50 

from due date of payment 

Less than l I 1-2 years I 2-3 years I More thnn 3 
vea r vurs 

40.05 

Outs!Rnding for following per iods 
from due date of payment 

Less than l I 1-2 years I 2-3 years I More than 3 
yc~r ,,ears 

60.54 

March 31, 2024 

9.68 

9.68 

1.20 
1.87 

3.07 

12.75 

March 31, 2024 

120.04 

120.04 

Total 

11.91 

60.66 

Total 

120.04 
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17 Other financial liabililies 

Carried at amortised cost 

Current 

Employee rela1ed payables 

Accrued expenses 

Liability for capital assets 

Total other financial liabilities 

• Accrued expenses represent amoums accrued for other operational expenses. 

18 Other current liabilities 

Sta1utory liabilities payable• 

Advances received from customers 

Total other current liabilities 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

57. 13 

31.59 

199.05 

287.77 

March 31, 2025 

I 1.13 

11.13 

58.83 
25.18 

84.01 

March 31, 2024 

8.89 

3.80 

12.69 

•Statutory liabili1ies primarily rela1e 10 payables in respect of Employee state insurance, provident fund, professional tax and tax 
deducted at source. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except stated otherwise 

19 Revenue from operations 

(a) Sale of of finished goods 
Domestic 

(b) Other operating revenues 

Income from renting facilities 

Sale of accessories, scrap and others 

Job work income 

Total revenue from operations 

i. Disaggregation of Revenue from sale of finished goods 

March 3 1, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1,074.65 516.64 

1,074.65 516.64 

246.00 246.00 

0.38 0. 14 

6.92 0.78 

253.30 246.92 

1,327.95 763.56 

The characteristics of Company's revenue are uniform in terms of product type, contract counterparties, timing of 
transfer of goods, uncertainty of revenue and cash0ows etc. Therefore, disaggregation of revenue as per these 
categories is not applicable. 

ii. Remaining performance Obligations 

All of the Company's contracts are for the delivery of goods within the next 12 months for which the practical 
expedient in paragraph 12 l(a) of Ind AS I 15 applies. As a result, the Company has not disclosed the information 
pertaining to remaining performance obligations as required by paragraph 120 of Ind AS 115. 

iii. Contract balances 

Balance at the beginning of the yenr 

Less: Amount included in contract liabilities that was recognised as 
revenue during the period 

Add: Cash received in advance of performance and not recognised as 
revenue during the period 

Bnlance at the end of the year 

20 Other income 

Interest income on: 

Bank deposits 
Security deposits 

Income tax refunds 

Total other income 

Contract liabilities 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

3.80 

3.80 

3.80 

3.80 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

0.08 

7.13 

0.87 

8.08 

6. 13 

0.36 

6.49 
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21 Cost of raw materials and components consumed 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 

Add: Purchases 

Less: inventory at the end of the year 

Total cost of rnw materials and components consumed 

22 Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Total purchase of stock-in-trade 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

52.21 

417.79 333.94 

470.00 333.94 

69.74 52.21 

400.26 281.73 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

90.10 100.44 

90.IO 100.44 

23 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Finished goods 
Stock-in-trade 

Work-in-progress 

Inventories at the end of the year 

Finished goods 
Stock-in-trade 

Work-in-progress 

Total changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 
work-in-progress 

24 Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages 

Contribution to provident and other funds 

Gratuity expense (net) (refer note 33) 

Staff welfare expense 

Total employee benefit expenses 

25 Finance costs 

Interest expense on: 

lease liabilities 

Bank charges and other borrowing costs 

Total finance costs 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

28.78 

129.26 

58.43 

216.47 

8.33 

36.97 

0.5 1 

45.81 

170.66 

March 31, 2025 

427.80 

46.37 

8.32 

2.47 

484.96 

69.85 

69.85 

28.78 

129.26 

58.43 

216.47 

(146.62) 

March 31, 2024 

231.72 

26.16 

4.60 

1.81 

264.29 

March 31,2025 March31,2024 

40.81 

2.04 

42.85 

62.00 

0.89 

62.89 
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26 Depreciation and amortization expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Amortisation on right-of-use assets 

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 

27 Other expenses 

Consumption of stores, spares and other manufacturing expenses 

Water, electricity and fuel charges 

Job work charges 

Clearing, forwarding and freight 

Rent 

Rates and taxes 

Repairs and maintenance 

Plant and machinery 

Buildings 

Others 

Legal and professional fees 

Telephone and internet expenses 

Travelling and conveyance 

Payment to auditors [refer note 27(a)] 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Total other expenses 

Note 27(a): Payment to auditors (exclusive of GST) 

Audit fees 
Total payment to auditors (exclusive of GST) 

March 3 I, 2025 

57.31 

183.19 

240.50 

March 3 I, 2025 

9.39 

32.05 

45.29 

4.25 

6.99 
3.26 

18.40 

1.62 

7.53 

12.25 

1.58 

6.37 

0.80 

46.03 

195.81 

March 31, 2025 

0.80 
0.80 

March 31, 2024 

42.89 

188.54 

231.43 

March 3 I, 2024 

3.58 

31.18 

30.49 

0.96 

14. 11 

5.03 

11.50 

1.90 

3.97 

1.71 

2.81 

1.83 

0.80 

38.25 

148.12 

March 31, 2024 

0.80 
0.80 
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Noles to the financial statements for t he year ended March 31, 2025 

All amounts i11 Indian Rupees in /akhs, except stated otherwise 

28 I ncomc tax 
The company elected lo exercise the option pem1iued under section I I 5BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by 
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, therefore effective tax rate applicable on the company is 25. 17%. MAT 
provisions is also not applicable on the companies, opting section I 158AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Income tax expenses reported in t he statement of profit and loss arc as follows: 

(a) Current tax 

(b) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 

(c) Deferred tax (credit)/charge 

Income tax expense reported in the sta tement of profit and loss 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(72.85) (93.14) 

(72.85) (93.14) 

Reconciliation of tax expense a nd the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate is summarized 
below: 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 
Statutory income tax rate 

Computed tax expense 

Tax effect of: 

Impact of deferred tax credit on opening balance of carry 
forward tax losses. unabsorbed depreciation & temporary 
differences etc. 

Others 

Income tux expense reported in lhe statement of profit a nd loss 

The major components of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) a rc as follows: 

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 

Expenditure allowable on payment basis 

Unused tax credit available for ofl'selling against future taxable income 

Other 

Total deferred tax assets (net) 

29 Earnings per share (EPS) 

March 31, 2025 March 3 1, 2024 

(292.04) ( 172.23) 

25.17% 25. 17% 

(73.50) (43.35) 

(49.79) 

0.65 

(72.85) (93. 14) 

March 3 1, 2025 Mllrch 31, 2024 

10.65 6.65 

12.39 6.12 

133.06 71.85 

9.89 8.52 

165.99 93.14 

Basic EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of equity shares ou1srn11ding during the year. Panly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction 
of an equity share 10 the extent that they were entitled to panicipatc in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 
the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events 
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share spilt and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would 
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity Shares. 
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The following reflects the income and s hare data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Face value of equity shares(~ per share) 
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 

Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing 
EPS (basic and diluted) 

EPS - basic and diluted (~) 

30 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 

March 31, 2025 

10.00 
(2 19. 19) 

20,000 

(1,095.97) 

March 31, 2024 

10.00 
(79.09) 

20,000 

(395.45) 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and tl1e accompanying disclosures 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ form those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, uncertainty about these assumptions and es timates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which are estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include provision for obsolete 
inventory, impairment of investments, impairment of non current assets, provision for employee benefits and other 
provisions, fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities, commitments and contingencies. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting dale, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities witl1in the next financial 
year. are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however. may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 

a. Income taxes 
The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose 
of paying advance tax, detcnnining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for 
uncertain tax positions. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of 
periodic depreciation is derived after de1em1ining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual 
value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by the management at 
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on 
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as 
changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or unprovements in production or from a change rn 
market demand of the product or service output of the asset. 
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c. Right-of-use assets and lease liabili ty 

The Company has exercised judgement in dctennining the lease tenn as the non-cancellablc tem1 of the lease, together with 
the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit in the 
lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of 
interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar tem1, with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. Dctennination of the 
incremental borrowing rate requires estimation. 

d. Impairment of non current asset including investments 

Determining whether investment are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the individual investment or the 
relevant cash generating units ('CGU'). The value in use calculation is based on DCF model over the estimated usefu l life of 
the CGU's. Further, the cash flow projections are based on estimates and assumptions relating to sale price/customer orders 
on hand, efficiency in operations etc. 

e. Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on 
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation tecltniques including Lhe Discounted Cash Flow 
('DCF') model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, 
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity 
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reponed fair value of financial 
instruments. 

f. Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including 
legal and contractual claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events 
occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the 
exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to third parties, the Company considers that it is more likely 
than not that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided. 

g. Defined benefit obligations 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-tenn nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 10 changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in 
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases arc based on expected future 
inflation rates. 

Further delails about graluity obligations are given in note 33. 

h. Provision for ol>solcte inventory 

Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the naiure of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan and net realisable value. 
These write downs are recognised as an expense and are included in "(lncrcase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods 
and work-in-progress" in the statement of profit and loss .. 
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i. Expected credit losses on fin11ncial assels 

The impaim1en1 provisions of financial assets and contract assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impaim1en1 calculation, based on the Company's past history of collections, customer's creditworthiness, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

j. Non current assets held for sale 

Non current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Dctem1ina1ion 
of fair value involves management estimate. Fair value of assets held for sale is detem1ined using valuation technique 
involving unobservable inputs. Judgement is involved in estimating future cash now, determining discount rate etc. 

31 Segment information- Disclosure pursuant lo Ind AS 108 'Opcraling Segmenl' 

(a) Basis of idenlifying operoting segments: 

Operating segments are identified as those components of the Company (a) that engage in business activities to earn 
revenues and incur expenses (including transactions with any of the Company' s other components); (b) whose operating 
results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Executive Officer to make decis ions about resource allocation and 
performance assessment and (c) for which discrete financial infom1ation is available. 

The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied to record revenue 
and expenditure in individual segments. Assets, liabilities, revenues and direct expenses in relation to segments are 
categorised based on items that are individually identifiable to that segment, while other items, wherever allocable, are 
apportioned to the segments on an appropriate basis. Certain items are not specifically allocable to individual segments as 
the underlying services are used interchangeably, 

(b). The Company is engaged in a single business segment hence, no additional disclosures are required, other than those 
already given in the financial statements. 

c) Secondary business segment (by geographical area based on loca tion of customers): 

Segment revenue 

March JI, 2025 March 31, 2024 

India 

Rest of world 

Tolal 

32 Commilments and contingencies 

I. Leases 

1,327.95 763.56 

1,327.95 763.56 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS I 16. Identification of a 
lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses judgement in assessing whether a contract (or pan of contract) 
include a lease, the lease tenn (including anticipated renewals), the applicable discount rate, variable lease payments 
whether are in-substance fixed. The judgement involves assessment of whether the asset included in the contract is a fully or 
partly identified asset based on the facts and circumstances, whether the contract include a lease and nonlease component 
and if so, separation thereof for the purpose of recognition and measurement, determination of lease term basis, inter alia the 
non-cancellablc period of lease and whether the lessee intends to opt for continuing with the use of the asset upon the expiry 
thereot: and whether the lease payments are fixed or variable or a combination of both. The Company records the lease 
liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate. 
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The movement in lease liabilities i.s as follows: 

Opening balance 

Additions 

Deletions 

Finance cost accrued during the period 

Payment oflease liabilities 

Closing balance 

T he break-up of cur rent and non-current lease liabilities is as follows 

Current lease liabilities 

Non-current lease liabilities 

Total 

March 31, 2025 March 3 1, 2024 

451.32 252.47 

352.03 

40.81 62.00 

(218.58) (215. 18) 

273.55 451.32 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

102.06 177.64 

171.49 273.68 

273.55 451.32 

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on a n undiscountcd basis arc :ls follows : 

March JI, 2025 March JI, 2024 

Less than one year 125.88 218.59 

One to five years 191.23 317. 13 

Tohll 317.11 535.72 

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to 
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. 

Rental expense recorded for short-tem1 leases is , 6.99 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ~ 14. 11 lakhs) 

II. Contingencies 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such 
claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis with the assistance of external legal counsel, 
wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being 
estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that arc considered possible, 
but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts 
unless the loss becomes probable. 

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company 
believes that none of the contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

(a) Bank Guarantees 

Sanctioned 

Outstanding 

Ill. Capital and other commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
executed on capital account and not provided for (net 
of advances) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

8.57 

8.57 

March 31, 2025 

20.82 

March J I, 2024 

1.05 
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33 Grntuity and other post-employment benefit plans 
The Company has a defined benefit gratt1ity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, every employee who has completed four years and 240 days or more of service gets gratuity on 
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on the 
member's length of service and salary at retirement age. The scheme is funded with Li fe Insurance Corporation of India in the form of a 
qualifying insurance policy. 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 
status and amounts recognised in the standalone balance sheet for gratuity benefit. 

(a) Net benefit expenses (recognized in the statement of profit and loss) 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligations/ (assets} 
Net benefit expense 

(b) Remeasurement (gnins)/loss recognized in other comprehensive Income 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations arising from changes in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial (gain}/loss on obligations arising from changes in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations arising from changes in experience adjustments 
Actuar ial (gnin}/loss a r ising during the year 
Return on plan assets (greater)/less then discount rate 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income 

(c) Net defined benefit liability/(nsset) 

Defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 
Net liability/(asscl) 

(d) Changes in the present value of denned benefit obligation arc as follows: 

Opening defined benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations arising from changes in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial (gain}/loss on obligations arising from changes in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations arising from changes in experience adjustments 
Closing defined benefit obligation 

(e} Changes in the fa ir value o f plan assels are as follows: 

Opening fair value of plan assets 
Interest income on plan assets 
Contributions by employer 
Benefits paid 
Return on plan assets (greater)lless then discount rate 
Closing fair value of plan assets 

March J I, 2025 March 31, 2024 
7.60 4,07 
0.72 0.53 
8.32 4.60 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

0.45 (0.97) 
(4.36} (0.27) 
(J.9 1) ( 1.24) 

(3,9 1) ( 1.24) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
15.29 10.88 

15.29 10.88 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
10.88 7.51 
7.60 4.07 
0.72 0.53 

0.45 (0.97) 
(4 .36) (0.27) 
15.29 10.88 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
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( f) The following benefit payments (undiscountcd) arc expected in ruturc ycnrs: 

March 31, 2026 
March 3 1, 2027 
March 31, 2028 
March 3 l, 2029 
March 31, 2030 
Aller March 3 l , 2030 

(g) T he major categories or plan assets as a percentage or the fair value or total plun assets arc as follows: 
M arch 31, 2025 

Investments with insurer 0% 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plan is as shown below: 

Discount rate (in%) 
Salary escalation (in %) 
Employee turnover 

M arch 31, 2025 
% 

6.60% 
8.00% 

40.00% 
0.00% 

March 31, 2025 
1.82 
1.28 
I.OS 
1.03 
3.49 

13.32 

M arch 31, 2024 
0% 

March 31, 2024 
% 

7.19% 
8.00% 

40.00% 
0.00% Estimated rate of return on plan assets 

Mortalil)' rate Refer note 4 below 

Notes: 
I . Plan assets are fully represented by balance with an msurance company. 
2. The expected return on plan assets is determined cons1denng several applicable factors ma111ly the composiuon of the plan assets 
held, assessed risks of asset management, historical results of the return on plan assets and the Company's policy for plan asset 
management. 

3. The estimates of future salary increase in compensation levels, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senionl)', 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

4. As per Indian Assured Lives Mortalil)' (2012-14) ultimate. 
5. Refer note I 5 for current and non current classification. 

(h) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for signlficanl assumption is ns shown below: 

Discount rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to I% increase in discount rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to I% decrease in discount rate 

Salary escalation rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to I % increase in discount rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to I% decrease in discount ra1e 

Attrition rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to I% increase in discount rate 
Impact of defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount rate 

Mar ch 31, 2025 

(0.72) 
0.79 

0.73 
(0.68) 

(0.38) 
0.39 

M arch 31, 2024 

(0.43) 
0.46 

0.44 
(0.42) 

(0.10) 
0. 11 

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a 
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring a1 the end of the reporting period. 
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34 Related party transactions 

a. Names of rcl11ted parties and description of relationships: 

Description of relationship 
Immediate Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiaries 

Key management personnel 

Name of related parties 
Gokaldas Exports Limited 

All Colour Gannents Private Limited 
Vignesh Apparels Private Limited 
Gokaldasexports Acharpura Private Limited 
Sri Susamyuta Knits Private Limited 
Gokaldas Exports FZCO 
Nava Apparels LLC FZ 
Matrix Design & Industries Pvt Ltd 
Gokaldas Exports Corporation, USA 

Sathyamurthy A 
P Viswanath 
Prabhat Kumar Singh 

b. Summary of transactions during the year with the above related parties arc ns follows: 

(i) Purchase of finished goods 
Gokaldas Exports Limited• 
Gokaldasexports Acharpura Private Limited• 

(ii) O ther operating revenues 
Income from renting facilities 

Gokaldas Exports Limited* 

(iii) J ob work expense 
Gokaldas Exports Limited* 

(iv) Purchase of fixed assets 
Sri Susamyuta Knits Private Limited* 

•net ofGST 

c. Summary of outs tanding balances with the above related parties arc as follows: 

(i) Borrowings 
Gokaldas Exports Limited 

(ii) Other financial assets 
Gokaldas Exports Limited 

(iii) Trade payables 
Gokaldasexports Acharpura Private Limited 
Sri Susamyuta Knits Private Limited 

March 31, 2025 

10.96 

10.96 

246.00 
246.00 

39.88 
39.88 

2,84 
2.84 

March 31, 2025 

6 11.84 
61 1.84 

6.82 
3.35 

10. 17 

March 31, 2024 

26.66 
8.23 

34.89 

246.00 
246.00 

26.4 1 
26.41 

March 31, 2024 

504.76 
504.76 

6.82 

6.82 
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35 Ratio Analysis a nd its elements 

Sr. No. Ratio 

(a} Current ratio 

(b) Debt equity ratio 

(c) Debt Service Coverage ratio 
(d) Return on Equity ratio 

(e) Inventory turnover ratio 

(f) Trade receivables Tumover Ratio 
(g) Trade Payable Tumover Ratio 
(h) Net Capi1al Tumover Ratio 

(i) Net Profit ratio 

G) Return on Capital Employed 

(k) Ret urn on Investment 

Formula for computation of ratios: 
S.No. Par 1iculars 

(a) Current ratio 
(bl Debi equity ratio 

(c) Debt Service Coverage ratio 

(d) Return on Equity ratio 

(e) Inventory tumover ratio 

(f) Trade receivables Tumover Ratio 

(g) Trade Payable Tumo,·er Ra1io 

(h) Net Capi1al Tumover Ratio 

(i) Net Profit ratio 
G) Return on Capital Employed 

(k) Return on Investment 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

2.64 4 .30 

0.24 

-17. 18¾ -5.56% 

3.39 1.39 

1.69 2.61 
5.62 6.19 
1.04 0.54 

-16.51% -10.36¾ 

-13.59% 

-0.39% 

Numerntor 
Average current Assets 
Average Debi (Borrowing) 
Average Debi (Borrowing) - (opening 
deb1+closing debl)/2 

-7.66¾ 

6.4 1% 

Eamings before in1eres1, deprecia1ion and 
ta,es (Profit 
Before Ta,+ Finance cost+ Deprcc1a11on) 

Profit for the period/year 

Cos1 of goods sold 

To1al sale of finished goods 

To1al Purchases 

Revenue from operations 

Profit for the period/year (PAT) 
Profit Before Tax+ f'innnce cost 

Eamings before intercs1, depreciation and 
laxes (Profit 
Before Tax + Finance cost + Depreciation) 

V . (' '1/,) Remark.$ ror variance 
anance in .. if more than 25o/. 

-38.56% Due to increase in current 
liabilities, mainly liability for 
capital assets. 

Due to loan taken from holding 
company during the current year. 
Not applicable 

-208.98% Due to increase in operating losses. 

144.48% Due 10 faster movement of 
inven1ory 

-35.41 % Due to increase m receivables. 
-9.21% Not applicable 
93.89% Due to increase in revenue fiom 

operations. 
-59.36% Decline in net profit margin 

dcspile an increase in revenue from 
operations. 

-77.40% Due to increase in operaung losses. 

-I 06.02% Due to mcrcase in operating losses. 

De nominator 
Average currenl Liabilities 
Average total Equity 
Average total Equity - (opening Iota! equtty+closmg 
total equity}'2 

Toial Debt (Borrowing) repaid during lhe year 

Average total Equity 
Average total Equily • (opening total equity+closing 
toial equityY2 

Average Inventory 
Average lrwentory-(opening inventory+closing 
invcmory}'2 

Average trade receivables 
Average trade rcceivables""(opening trade 
reccivables+closing trade receivables}'2 

Average trade payables 
Average trade payable7 opening trade payablc+closmg 
1rade payable}'2 

Average total Equity 
Avcrase to1al Equity- (openmg tolal equity+closing 
total equity}'2 

Revenue from operations 
((Total Asscls. ROU Assets. mvestment in mutual 
funds)-{Current Liabilities-borrowings-current lease 
liablli1ies)} 

Avcr:ige total asse ts• (opening total assets+closmg total 
assets)/2 
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36 Disclosures on Financial instruments 
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance 
sheet items 1ha1 con1ain financial ins1rumen1s. 

The details of significan1 accoun1ing policies, includinc 1he criteria for recogni1ion, 1he basis of measuremenl and 1he basis on which income and 
expenses are recogmsed in respec1 of each class of financial asse1 and financial liability arc disclosed in Nole 2.2 (b) and No1c 2.2 (o) 10 the 
standalone financial s1a1emen1s. 

(a) Financial assets and liabilities 
The follO\\ing tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabili1ies: 

As al March 31, 2025 

Pa rticu la rs 

Financial assets 
Investments 
Ocher financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalen1s and ocher bank balance 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Lease liabilities 
Borrowmgs 
Other financial liabili11es 

As a t !\larch 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Financial assets 
Investments 
Ocher financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Lease liabililies 
Other financ,al liabili11es 

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

Amortised cost 
Fair value 

throu hOCI 

0,02 
210.96 
878.93 

I 1.57 
1,101.48 

72.57 
273.55 
61 1 84 
287.77 

1,245.73 

Amorlised cost 
Fair ,•alue 

throu h OCI 

0.02 
586.69 
395.43 

8. 11 
990.25 

120.04 
451.32 

84.01 
655.37 

Total 

0.02 
210.96 
878.93 

11.57 
1,101.48 

72.57 
273.55 
6 1 I 84 
287.77 

1,245.73 

Tora! 

0.02 
586 69 
395.43 

8.11 
990.25 

120.04 
451.32 

84.01 
655.37 

The following table provides an analysis of financial insirumems 1ha1 arc measured subsequent 10 inuial recognition a1 fair value, grouped on10 
Level I 10 Level 3. as described below: 

Quoted pr ices in an active market (Level I): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference 10 quoted prices 
(unadjus1ed) in ac1ive markets for iden1ical asse1s or liabilities. This ca1egory consists of investment in quoted equity shares. and mu1ual fund 
inves1men1s. 

Valuation techniques with observable inputs ( Lc,•el 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabiluies, measured usong mputs 
other 1han quoted prices included ,vi1hin Level I tha1 are observable for 1he asset or liabili1y, ei1her dircc1ly (i.e .. as prices) or indirectly (i.e . 
derived from prices). 

Valualion techniques wilh significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assc1s and liabiliues 
measured using inpuls 1ha1 are nol based on observable markel da1a (unobservable inputs). Fair values arc de1ennincd in whole or in pan, using 
a valua1ion model based on assump1ions tha1 are nei1her supponed by prices from observable currcnl market 1ransac1ions in the same ins1rument 
nor are they based on available market data. 

(i) Shon-term financial assels and liabilities are s1a1ed a1 corrying value which is approxima1ely equal 10 1hc1r fair value. 
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(ii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inheren1 limitations in any 
estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above arc not necessarily indicative 
of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale transaelions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial 
instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date. 

(iii) There have been no transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 3 I. 2024. 

(c) Financial risk manngemcnt objectives nnd 1,olicics 
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily 10 nuctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity pnces, 
liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. Toe Company has a risk management policy 
which nol only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks 
and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. TI1e risk management framework aims to. 

(i) create a stable business planning environmcn1 by reducing the impact of currency and in1e rcs1 rate nuctuations on the Company's business 
plan. 

(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by detennining the financial vnluc of the expected earnings in advance. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future e:irnings, m realisable fair values or in future cash nows that may result from a change m the pnce of 
a financial instrument. Tite value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in interesl rates, foreign currency exchange rates, 
equity price nuctuations. liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be nonnally predicted with reasonable 
accuracy 

(i) Market risk - Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash nows of a financial instrument will nucluate because of changes in market interest 
rates. Toe Company's exposure to the risk of changes m market interest rates relates primarily 10 the Company's long-term debt obligations wnh 
floating interest rates. The Company manages its in1eres1 rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and 
borrowings. 

(ii) Market risk- Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash nows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates. Tbe Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating and financing 
activities. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 10 a financial loss. 
Financial instruments 1h01 are subjcc1 to credit risk and concentration thercofpnncipally consist of trade receivables, investments, cash and cash 
equivalents and financial guarantees provided by the Company. 

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was~ 1,101.48 lakhs and? 
990.25 lakhs as at March 3 I, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively, being the total carrying value of1nvestments, Loans, other financial assets, 
Cash and cash equivalents, Bank b:llances. 

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Compnny's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer 
credit risk management. An impainnent analysis is perfonned al e:ich reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. The Company 
does not hold collateral as security. 

With respect to Trade receivables, the Company has constituted the tenns lo review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary 
mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss based on a 
provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking infonnation. The 
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that nre due and rates used in the provision matrix. 

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by 1he Company's treasury department in accordance with the 
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned 10 each 
counterpany. Tbe limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through countcrpany's potential 
failure lo make payments. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk rcfors to the risk 1ha1 the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. Toe objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain 
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds arc available for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, 
which carry no or low market risk. 
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The Company monitors its risk ofa shonage of funds on a regular basis. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdralls, bank borrowings, sale of assets and strategic pannership with investors, etc. The 
Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect 10 refinancing its debt and concluded it 10 below. 

The following UJble shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company's finnncial liabilities 
on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both canying value and fair value. 

As at March 31, 2025 
Par1iculars l}.I year > I year Total 
Trade payables 12.57 72.57 
Other financial liabilities 287.77 287.77 
Lease liabilities 102.06 171.49 273.55 
Borrowings 611.84 611.84 

462.40 783.33 1,245.73 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars l}.I 2:ear > I 2:ear Total 
Trade payables 120.04 120.04 
Other financial liabilities 84.01 84.01 
Lease liabiliucs 177.64 273.68 451.32 

381.69 273.68 655.37 

Equity Price risk 
Equity Price Risk is related to the change in fair value of the investmenis in equity securities. Company's investments 1n equity securities, 
including investments held for sale, are subject 10 changes m fair value of investments. The carrying value of investments represents the 
maximum equity risk. The maximum exposure to equity price risk was t Nil and t Nil as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively, 
being the carrying value (net of provisions) of investments in unquoted equity shares. The risk is arising primarily on account of the Company's 
investment in a foreign associate. 

37 Capital management 
The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of 
the Company 

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and shon term s1ra1eg1c 
investment and expansion plans. The funding needs arc met through equity, cash generated from operations and sale of certain assets, long term 
and short term bank borrowings and strategic partnership with investors. 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
anributable to the equity holders of the Company. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the 
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capnal 10 

shareholders or issue new shares. The CompMy monitors capital usmg a gearing ratio. which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt. 
The Company's policy is to keep the geanng ra110 at an optimum level to ensure that the debt related covenant are complied with. 

PArticulars March 3 1, 2025 March 31. 2024 
Borrowings 611.84 

Total debt 611.84 

Capital com11onents 
Equity share capim.l 2.00 2.00 
Other equity 1, 166.50 1,381.79 
Total capital 1,168.50 1,383.79 

Capital and borrowings 1,780.34 1,383.79 

Gearing ratio 34% Qt¼ 

ln order to achieve this overall objective, lhe Company's capiml management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial 
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would pem1it the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no material breaches in the financial covenants of 
any interest-bearing loans and borrowing for all the periods presented. 
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

38 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Ill 
a. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami properly under the Benami Transac11ons 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

b. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or linancial institution or government or any government au1hon1y. 

c. The Company has no transactions with the companies struck ofiunder Companies Ac1. 2013 or Companies Act, 1956 

d. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Aei. 2013 

e. The Company has 1101 entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year. 

( The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other pcrson{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries \Vllh 
the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

1. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneliciaries} or 
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

The Company has not received any fund from any person{s} or enl1ty(ics), including foreign entt1ics (Funding Party} with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or othef\,~se} that the Company shall : 
i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalSOever by or on behalf of the Fundrng Parry 
(Ultimate Beneliciaries) or 
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

g. There ,s no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of accounL 

h. The Company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency dur111g the current or previous year. 

i. The Company has nol revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or 
previous year. 

j . The Company does 001 have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account 1ha1 has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year March 31, 2025 and March 3 1, 2024 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey 
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Acl, 1961. 

39 The company doesn't have any litigation by and against the company. 

40 The statement of audited standalone linancial statements for the year ended March 31. 2025 have been approved by the Board of Directors in 
their meeting held on May 19, 2025. 
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41 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year pre~ntation 
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